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GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P.
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Consolidated Statement of Profit or I.oss and
Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Notes 2014 2013
$'000 $°000
Revenue 7 138,049 125,004
Other income 7 463 358
Operating expenses (85,916) (82,391)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (28,255) (25,562)
Acquisition transactions expense - (186)
Depreciation and amortisation (23,228) (22,998)
Finance costs (5,822) (6,827)
Foreign currency transaction gain (loss) 3,234 (9,825)
Loss before income tax (1,475) (22,427)
Income tax benefit 9 11 5,790
Loss for the year from continuing operations (1,464) (16,637)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 18 - (2,969)
Loss for the year (1,464) (19,606)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax:
Foreign currency translation reserve (2,557) 13,454
Unrealised gain on interest rate swaps 126 163
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (2,431) 13,617
Total comprehensive loss for the year (3,895) (5,989)

This statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2014

Notes 2014 2013 A Y
$°000 $'000 $'000

Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 11 28,519 20,607 12,818
Trade and other receivables 12 26,758 24,264 24,383
Other current assets 13 980 1,684 2,739
Assets held for sale - - 1,337
Current assets 56,257 46,555 41,277
Non-current
Property, plant and equipment 16 5,347 5,616 5,546
Intangible assets 15 108,274 128,542 146,616
Goodwill 14 93,715 93,092 93,903
Deferred tax assets 17 3,961 5,530 2,644
Other assets 13 243 278 234
Non-current assets 211,540 233,058 248,943
Total assets 267,797 279,613 290,220
Liabilities
Current
Trade and other payables 19 21,113 21,083 17,979
Liabilities held for sale - - 117
Deferred revenue 21 1,532 248 374
Current tax liabilities 17 1,672 316 910
Financial liabilities 22 7,937 5,525 3,750
Provisions 20 677 621 331
Current liabilities 32,931 27,793 23,461
Non-current
Trade and other payables 19 54 56 50
Financial liabilities 22 56,089 63,001 67,371
Deferred tax liabilities 17 26,261 33,163 37,498
Derivatives 23 1,487 1,682 1,933
Other liabilities 24 634 100 37
Provisions 20 555 478 577
Non-current liabilities 85,080 98,480 107,466
Total liabilities 118,011 126,273 130,927
Net assets 149,786 153,340 159,293
Equity
Partners’ equity 25 226,419 207,667 192,169
Reserves 10,695 12,785 (868)
Accumulated losses (87.328) (67,112) (32,008)
Total equity 149,786 153,340 159,293

This statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P. and subsidiaries
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Notes 2014 2013
$°000 $'000

Operating activities

Receipts from customers 154,244 140,842
Payments to suppliers and employees (130,819) (117,183)
Interest received 463 358
Finance costs (5,105) (6,198)
Income tax paid (3,405) (3,800)
Net cash from continuing operations 15,378 14,019
Net cash used in discontinued operations 18 - (868)
Net cash from operating activities 28 15,378 13,151
Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,474) (2,433)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment 6 -
Net cash used in investing activities (2,468) (2,433)
Financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 1,524 243
Repayment of borrowings . (6,971) (3,595)
Net cash used in financing activities (5,447) (3,352)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 7,463 7,366
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 20,607 12,818
Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents 449 423
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 11 28,519 20,607

This statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.



GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P.
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements

1 Corporate information

Nature of operations

GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), I.P. and its subsidiaries’ (“the Partnership™) provides
traffic and news information reports to radio and/or television stations in international
matkets, including Australia, Canada, the United Kingdom and Brazil. The Partnership
detives a substantial majority of its revenues from the sale of commetcial advertising
embedded within these information reports. The Partnership obtains this advertising
commercials from radio and television stations in exchange for information tepotts and/ot

cash compensation.

General information and statement of compliance

The consolidated general purpose financial statements of the Partnership have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of Australian Accounting Standards and
other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board. These
financial statements also comply with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). GTCR
Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P. is a for-profit partnership for the purpose of preparing
the consolidated financial statements.

GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P. (the “Partnetship” ot “Cayman”) is 2 Cayman
Islands limited partnership that formed on 25 July 2011 fot the purpose of acquiting
Global Traffic Network, Inc. (“GTN™). The purchase of GTN was completed 28
September 2011 with GTN becoming a wholly owned indirect subsidiaty of the
Partnership. Certain subsidiaries of GIN wete transfetted to other indirect subsidiaries of
the Partnership. GT'CR Gridlock Partners, Ltd. is the General Partner (the “General
Partner”) of the Partnership. The address of its registered office and its ptincipal place of
business is Maples Corporate Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 (including
comparatives) were approved and authotised fot issuance on 8 October 2015. The
Partnership has the power to amend and teissue the financial statements.



GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P.
For the year ended 30 June 2014

2 Summary of accounting policies

2.1 Overall considerations

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the pteparation of these
consolidated financial statements are summarised below.

First time adoption of IFRS is set out under AASB 1 — First Time Adoption of Australian
Accounting Standards. AASB 1 requires application of the same accounting policies to the
opening statement of financial position and for the periods when the fitst comparative
financial statements are disclosed. In addition, AASB 1 proscribes mandatory exemptions
and optional exemptions which have been applied by the partnetship as described in Note
34.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases
specified by Australian Accounting Standards for each type of asset, liability, income and
expense. The measurement bases are more fully described in the accounting policies
below.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

‘The Partnership financial statements consolidate those of GTCR Gridlock Holdings
(Cayman), L.P. and all of its subsidiaries as of 30 June 2014. The Partnership controls a
subsidiary if it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
subsidiary and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the subsidiary.
All subsidiaries have a repotting date of 30 June.

All transactions and balances between companies of the Partnership are eliminated on
consolidation, including unrealised gains and losses on transactions between the
Partnership and the companies. Where unrealised losses on “intra-group™ asset sales are
reversed on consolidation, the undetlying asset is also tested for impairment from a
Partnership perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaties have
been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted
by the Partnership.

Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaties acquited or disposed of
during the year are recognised from the effective date of acquisition, ot up to the effective
date of disposal, as applicable.

2.3 Business combination
The Partnership applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations.

The consideration transferred by the Partnership to obtain control of a subsidiaty is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred, liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the Partnetship, which includes the fair value of
any asset or liability arising from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition

costs are expensed as incurred.

The Partnership recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business
combination regardless of whether they have been previously recognised in the acquiree’s
financial statements prior to the acquisition. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
generally measured at their acquisition-date fair values.



GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P.
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is
calculated as the excess of the sum of (a) fair value of consideration transferred; (b) the
recognised amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquitee; and (c) acquisition-date
fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquiree, over the acquisition-date fair values
of identifiable net assets. If the fair values of identifiable net assets exceed the sum
calculated above, the excess amount (i.e. gain on a bargain purchase) is recognised in profit
or loss immediately.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements ate presented in Australian Dollars (AUD). ATN
and Aus Hold Co’s functional currency is Australian dollars (AUD); CTN’s functional
currency is Canadian dollars (CAD); UK Hold Co and UK-Commetcial’s functional
currency is British Pounds (GBP); and BTN’s functional curtency is Brazilian Real (BRL).
All other entities functional cutrency is United State Dollars (USD).

The functional currency of GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P. is USD since the
partners are almost exclusively residents of the United States. These financial statements
presentation currency is AUD which is the functional cuttency of the largest pottion of the

Partnership’s operations.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the re-measurement of monetary items at year
end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at histotical cost
(translated using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction), except for non-
monetary items measured at fair value which are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when fair value was determined.

Foreign operations

In the Partnership’s financial statements, all assets, liabilities and transactions of entities
with a functional cutrency other than AUD ate translated into AUD upon consolidation.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
The functional currency of the entities in the Partnership has temained unchanged during
the reporting period.

On consolidation, assets and liabilities have been translated into AUD at the closing rate at
the reporting date. Income and expenses have been translated into AUD at the average
rate over the reporting period. FExchange differences are charged / credited to othet
comprehensive income and recognised in the currency translation reserve in equity. On
disposal of a foreign operation the cumulative translation differences recognised in equity
are reclassified to profit or loss and recognised as part of the gain ot loss on disposal.

Loans between group entities are eliminated upon consolidation. Whete the loan is
between group entities that have different functional currencies, the foreign exchange gain
or loss is not eliminated and is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
unless the loan is not expected to be settled in the foreseeable future and thus forms part



GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P.
For the year ended 30 June 2014

of the net investment in the foreign operation. In such a case, the foreign exchange gain or
loss is recognized in other comprehensive income.

2.5 Revenue recognition

Advertising revenue

Adpvertising revenue is earned and recognised at the time commetcial advertisements are
broadcast. Advertising revenues are reported net of commissions provided to third party
advertising agencies that represent a majority of the advertisers. Payments received or
amounts invoiced in advance are deferred until earned and such amounts are included as a
component of deferred revenue in the accompanying consolidated statement of financial
position. Sales taxes, goods and service taxes, value added taxes and similar charges
collected by the Partnership on behalf of government authorities are not included as a
component of revenue.

Interest and dividend income

Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method. Dividend income, other than those from investments in associates, is recognised
at the time the right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Operating expenses

The cost of producing and distributing the radio and television traffic and news reports and
services and the obtaining of advertising inventory are considered operating expenses.
These consist mainly of personnel, aviation costs, facility costs, third party content
providers and station compensation. Operating expenses are recognised when incurred.

2.7 Station compensation and reimbursement

The Partnership generally enters into multiyear contracts with radio and television stations.
These contracts call for the provision of various levels of setvice (including, but not limited
to providing professional broadcasters, gatheting of information, communications costs
and aviation services) and, in some cases, cash compensation ot reimbursement of
expenses. Station compensation and reimbursement is a component of operating expenses
on the accompanying consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and is recognised over the terms of the contracts, which is not materially different
than when the services are petformed.

2.8 Profit or loss from discontinued operations
A discontinued operation is a component of the Partnership that either has been disposed
of, or is classified as held fot sale, and:

® reptesents a separate major line of business or geographical atea of operations;

e is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business ot
geographical area of operations; or

® s a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to re-sale.

Profit or loss from discontinued operations, including prior yeatr components of profit or
loss, are presented in a single amount in the statement of profit ot loss and othet
comprehensive income. This amount comprises the post-tax profit ot loss of discontinued
operations and the post-tax gain or loss resulting from the measurement and disposal of
assets classified as held for sale.

10



GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P.
For the year ended 30 June 2014

The disclosures for discontinued operations in the priot year relate to all operations that
have been discontinued by the reporting date for the latest period presented.

2.9 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impaitment. Trade
recetvables are generally due for settlement within 30 days. They are presented as current
assets unless collection is not expected for more than 12 months after the reporting date.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known
to be uncollectible are written off by reducing the cartying amount directly. An allowance
account (provision for impairment of trade receivables) is used when there is objective
evidence that the Partnership will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtot, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial re-otganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) ate considered indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the impairment allowance is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest tate. Cash flows relating to shott-term
receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss within selling, general
and administrative expenses. When a trade receivable fot which an impaitment allowance
had been recognised becomes uncollectible in a subsequent petiod, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveties of amounts previously written off are
credited against selling, general and administrative expenses in profit ot loss.

2.10 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination that
are not individually identified and separately recognised. Goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the catrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating units or gtoups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units
or groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the operating segments.

2.11 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost. Intangible assets with definite lives are amortised over
thetr expected useful lives on a straight line basis, as follows:

e station contracts: 14 years
e advertising contracts: 4.5 years

Amortisation expense is not reflected for intangible assets with indefinite lives such as trade
names and the Partnership annually tests these assets for impairment. There is no
residual value recognised with regard to intangible assets subject to amottisation.

11



GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P.
For the year ended 30 June 2014

2.12 Property, plant and equipment

IT equipment, motor vehicles, aircraft and other equipment

I'T equipment, motor vehicles, aitcraft and other equipment (comptising furniture and
fittings) are initially recognised at acquisition cost ot manufacturing cost, including any
costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary fot
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Partnership’s management.

I'T equipment, motor vehicles, aircraft and othet equipment are subsequently measured
using the cost model, cost less subsequent depreciation and impairment losses. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis to write down the cost less estimated
residual value of computer equipment, motor vehicles, aircraft and other equipment. The
following useful lives are applied:

® computer equipment and software: 3-5 years

e motor vehicles: 7 years

¢ helicopters and fixed wing aircraft: 6-8 yeats

¢ helicopters engine rebuilds: 2-3 years

e furniture, equipment and othet: 5 years

® recording, broadcasting and studio equipment: 5 years.

Material residual value estimates and estimates of useful life are updated as required, but at
least annually.

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are
recognised in profit or loss within othet income ot other expenses.

2.13 Leased assets

Finance leases

The economic ownership of a leased asset is transferred to the lessee if the lessee bears
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset. Where the
Partnership is a lessee in this type of arrangement, the related asset is tecognised at the
inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset o, if lower, the present value of
the lease payments plus incidental payments, if any. A cortesponding amount is recognised
as a finance lease liability. The corresponding finance lease liability is reduced by lease
payments net of finance charges. The interest element of lease payments tepresents a
constant proportion of the outstanding capital balance and is charged to profit or loss, as
finance costs over the petiod of the lease.

Operating leases

All other leases are treated as operating leases. Where the Partnership is a lessee, payments
on operating lease agreements are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Assoctated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

2.14 Impairment testing of goodwill, other intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment

For impairment assessment purposes, assets ate grouped at the lowest levels for which

there are largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets

12



GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P.
For the year ended 30 June 2014

are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
synergies of the related business combination and represent the lowest level within the
Partnership at which management monitors goodwill.

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated (determined by the
Partnership’s management as equivalent to its operating segments) and trade names are
tested for impairment at least annually. All other individual assets ot cash-generating units
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s ot cash-generating
unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value-in-use. To determine the value-in-use, management estimates
expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for
impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Partnership’s latest approved
budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of future reotganisations and asset
enhancements. Discount factors are determined individually for each cash-generating unit
and reflect management’s assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-
specific risks factors.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to that cash-generating unit. Any remaining impairment loss is charged
pro rata to the other assets in the cash-generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all
assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss pteviously
recognised may no longer exist. An impairment charge is reversed if the cash-generating
unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its cartying amount.

2.15 Financial instruments

Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Pattnership becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument, and are measured initially at
fair value adjusted by transactions costs, except for those cartied at fair value through profit
or loss, which are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities are described below.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, ot when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are
transferred. A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged,

cancelled or expires.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets other than those designated
and effective as hedging instruments are classified into the following categoties upon initial
recognition:

e Joans and receivables;

13



GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P.
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All financial assets are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting date to
identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each category
of financial assets, which are described below.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are
presented within finance costs, finance income ot other financial items, except for
impairment of trade receivables which is presented within selling, general and
administrative expenses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, these are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The
Partnership’s cash and cash equivalents, trade and most other receivables fall into this
category of financial instruments.

Individually significant receivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or
when other objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will default.
Receivables that are not considered to be individually impaired are reviewed for
impairment in groups, which are determined by reference to the industry and region of a
counterparty and other shared credit risk characteristics. The impairment loss estimate is
then based on recent historical counterparty default rates for each identified group.

Deferred loan costs relate to the costs related to the debt financing of Aus Hold Co and are
amortised using the effective interest method over the five year life of the loan. Expense

recognised related to the effective interest method is recognised as a component of finance
costs in the Partnership’s consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The Partnership’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and othet payables and

derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, and are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit
ot loss.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value that are
reported in profit or loss are included within finance costs or finance income.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivattve financial instruments are accounted for as hedging instruments in cash flow
hedge relationships, which requires a specific accounting treatment. To qualify for hedge
accounting, the hedging relationship must meet several strict conditions with respect to
documentation, probability of occutrence of the hedged transaction and hedge

effectiveness.

All derivative financial instruments used for hedge accounting are recognised initially at fair
value and reported subsequently at fair value in the statement of financial position.

14
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To the extent that the hedge is effective, changes in the fait value of detivatives designated
as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income
and included within the cash flow hedge reserve in equity. Any ineffectiveness in the hedge
relationship is recognised immediately in profit ot loss.

At the time the hedged item affects profit or loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and presented as a
reclassification adjustment within other comprehensive income. However, if 2 non-
financial asset or liability is recognised as a result of the hedged transaction, the gains and
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are included in the initial
measurement of the hedged item.

If a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occut any related gain or loss recognised
in other comprehensive income is transferred immediately to profit ot loss. If the hedging
relationship ceases to meet the effectiveness conditions, hedge accounting is discontinued
and the related gain or loss is held in the equity resetve until the forecast transaction
occurs.

2.16 Income taxes

Under current legislation the Partnership is not subject to income tax and its taxable
income/taxable loss (including assessable realised capital gains) is disttibuted in full to the
Partners. The Partnership fully distributes its distributable income/losses, calculated in
accordance with the Partnership’s constitution and applicable taxation legislation, to the
Partners who are presently entitled to the income/loss under the constitution.

Within the subsidiaries, the income tax expense for the petiod is the tax payable on the
current period’s taxable income based on the national tax rate for each jutisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences
between the tax base of the asset and liabilities and their catrying amount in the financial

statetments.

Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability method on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and Hlabilities and their tax bases. However,
deferred tax is not provided on the initial recognition of goodwill or on the initial
recognition of an asset or liability unless the related transaction is a business combination
or affects tax or accounting profit. Deferred tax on temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries is not provided if reversal of these temporary differences can be
controlled by the Partnership and it is probable that reversal will not occur in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are
expected to apply to their respective period of realisation, provided they ate enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting petiod.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be able to
be utilised against future taxable income, based on the Pattnership’s forecast of future
operating results which is adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and
specific limits to the use of any unused tax loss or credit. Defetred tax liabilities are always
provided for in full.

15
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only when the Partnership has a right and
intention to set off current tax assets and liabilities from the same taxation authority.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax benefit ot
expense in profit or loss, except where they relate to items that are tecognised in other
comprehensive income (such as the revaluation of land) or directly in equity, in which case
the related deferred tax is also recognised in other comptehensive income or equity,
respectively.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with
other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant tisk of changes in value.

2.18 Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are benefits, other than termination benefits, that are
expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the petiod in which the
employees render the related service. Examples of such benefits include wages and salaties,
non-monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave. Short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Other long-term empioyee benefits

The Company’s liabilities for annual leave and long setvice leave are included in other long
term benefits when they are not expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are measured
at the present value of the expected future payments to be made to employees. The
expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary levels, expetience
of employee departures and periods of service, and are discounted at rates determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting petiod on high quality corporate
bonds or government bonds that have maturity dates that approximate the timing of the
estimated future cash outflows. Any re-measurements atising from expetience adjustments
and changes in assumptions are recognised in profit ot loss in the petiods in which the
changes occur. The obligations are presented as cuttrent liabilities on the statement of
financial position if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for
at least 12 months after the reporting period regardless of when the actual settlement is
expected to occur.

2.19 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and setvices provided to the Partnetship prior
to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts ate unsecured and ate usually
paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months from the reporting date.

2.20 Equity and reserves
Partners’ equity represents the fair value of units that have been issued. Any transaction

costs associated with the issuing of units are deducted from partner’ equity.

Other components of equity include the following:
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e Foreign currency translation reserve — comptises foreign cutrency translation
differences arising on the translation of financial statements of the Partnership’s
foreign entities into AUD.

® Interest rate hedging reserve — comprises changes in the fair value of companies
interest rate hedges that are deemed effective.

® Equity based payment reserve — comprises the cumulative charge to the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for employee equity based

remuneratton.
Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits.

2.21 Equity based remuneration
The Partnership operates equity-settled equity-based remuneration plan for its employees.
The Partnership also operates a cash-settled equity-based remuneration plan for its

employees.

All goods and services received in exchange for the grant of any equity-based payment are
measured at their fair values. Where employees are tewarded using equity-based payments,
the fair values of employees’ services are determined indirectly by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments granted. This fair value is appraised at the grant date and
excludes the impact of non-market vesting conditions (for example profitability and sales
growth targets and performance conditions).

All equity-settled equity-based remuneration is ultimately recognised as an expense in profit
or loss with a corresponding credit to equity based payments reserve. If vesting periods or
other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated over the vesting petiod, based on
the best available estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of equity
instruments that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are subsequently revised if
there is any indication that the number of equity insttuments expected to vest differs from
previous estimates. Any cumulative adjustment prior to vesting is recognised in the current
petiod. No adjustment is made to any expense recognised in prior petiods if equity
instruments ultimately exercised are different to that estimated on vesting.

Upon exercise of equity instruments, the proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are allocated to partners’ equity.

The same policy is in place for phantom partnership interests, except that it is treated as a
liability since it is anticipated these interests will cash-settled. The liabilities are remeasured
to fair value at each reporting date and are presented as non-curtent other liabilities in the
statement of financial position.

2.22 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions for legal disputes, onerous contracts ot other claims are recognised when the
Partnership has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be requited from the Partnership and
amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.
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Restructuring provisions are recognised only if a detailed formal plan for the restructuting
has been developed and implemented, and management has at least announced the plan’s
main features to those affected by it. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the
risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where thete are a number of
similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be requited in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are discounted to
their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Any reimbursement that the Partnership can be vittually certain to collect from a third
party with respect to the obligation is recognised as a sepatate asset. However, this asset
may not exceed the amount of the related provision.

No liability is recognised if an outflow of economic resources as a result of present
obligation is not probable. Such situations are disclosed as contingent liabilities, unless the
outflow of resources is remote in which case no liability is recognised.

2.23 Goods and services taxes (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of any amount of associated GST, value
added taxes (VAT), Quebec sales tax (QST), harmonized Sales tax (HST) and similar taxes
unless the tax incutred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In such case the tax
is recognized as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset ot as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST and related taxes
receivable or payable. The net amount of these taxes recoverable from, ot payable to, the
taxation authority is included in trade and other payables in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The components of cash flows atising from
investing or financing activities which are tecoverable from, ot payable to the taxation
authority, are presented as operating cash flows.

2.24 Rounding of amounts
Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest $1,000, or in
certain cases, the nearest dollar.

2.25 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies
and estimation uncertainty

When preparing the financial statements, management undertakes a number of judgements,

estimates and assumptions about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities,

income and expenses.

Significant management judgement
The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies
of the Partnership that have the most significant effect on the financial statements.

Recognition of deferred tax balances
The extent to which defetred tax balances are recognised is based on an assessment of the
probability of the Partnership’s future taxable income against which the defetred tax assets
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can be utilised or liabilities assessed. In addition, significant judgement is required in
assessing the impact of any legal ot economic limits or uncertainties in various tax
jurisdictions.

Impairment

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or
cash-generating unit based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to
discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating
results and the determination of a suitable discount rate. In 2013, the Partnership
recognised an impairment loss on goodwill.

Useful lives of depreciable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting
date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to
technical obsolescence that may change the utility of certain property, plant and equipment.

Fair value of financial instruments

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fait value of financial instruments
(where active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves
developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price
the instrument. Management bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible
but this is not always available. In that case management uses the best information
available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual ptices that would be achieved in
an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

2.26 Parent entity financial information

The financial information for the parent entity, GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P.
disclosed in Note 31 has been prepared on the same basis as the consolidated financial
statements except as set out below.

(i) Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in the financial statements of GTCR
Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P. Dividends received are recognized when the right to
receive the dividend is established.

(ii) Taxes

As a partnership, GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman) L.P. does not recognize the taxes
related to its income as these are the responsibility of the partners.

(i1) Equity based payments

The grant by equity based incentives to the employees of its subsidiaties in the group are
treated as related party receivables from the subsidiatry undertaking. The fait value of
employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is
recognized over the vesting petiod as an increase in the related party receivable with a
corresponding credit to reserves.
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3 Changes in accounting policies
3.1 Accounting Standards issued but not yet effective and not been
adopted early by the Partnership
At the date of authorisation of these financials statements, certain new standards,
amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published but are not yet
effecttve, and have not been adopted eatly by the Partnership. Management anticipates that
all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Partnership’s accounting policies
for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement. Information
on new standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the
Partnership’s financial statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not expected to have a material impact on the
Partnership’s financial statements.

AASB 9 Financial Instruments (effective from 1 January 2018)
AASB 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities.

These requirements improve and simplify the approach for classification and measurement
of financial assets compared with the requitements of AASB 139. The main changes are:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments will be classified based on (1) the objective of
the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets; and (2) the charactetistics
of the contractual cash flows.

b. Allows an irtevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading in other comprehensive
income (instead of in profit ot loss). Dividends in respect of these investments that are
a return on investment can be recognised in profit or loss and there is no impaitment
or recycling on disposal of the instrument.

c. Financial assets can be designated and measuted at fair value through profit ot loss at
initial recognition if doing so eliminates ot significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities, or
recognising the gains and losses on them, on different bases.

d.  Where the fair value option is used for financial liabilities the change in fair value is to
be accounted for as follows:

e 'The change attributable to changes in credit risk are presented in other
comprehensive income (OCI); and
¢ The remaining change is presented in profit ot loss.

If this approach creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in the profit or loss, the effect
of the changes in credit risk are also presented in profit or loss.

Otherwise, the following requirements have generally been carried forward unchanged
from AASB 139 into AASB 9:

e (lassification and measurement of financial liabilities; and
® Derecognition requirements for financial assets and liabilities.

AASB 9 requirements regarding hedge accounting represent a substantial overhaul of
hedge accounting that will enable entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in the financial statements.

Consequential amendments arising from AASB 9 are contained in AASB 2010-7
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards atising from AASB 9 (December 2010),
AASB 2010-10 Further Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Removal of
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Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters and AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards — Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures.
AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Conceptual Framework,
Materiality and Financial Instruments and AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards.

The entity has not yet assessed the full impact of AASB 9 as this standard does not apply
mandatorily before 1 January 2018 and the IASB is yet to finalise the remaining phases of
its project to replace TAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (AASB
139 in Australia).

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Disclosures
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (effective from 1 January 2014)
AASB 2012-3 adds application guidance to ASB 132 to address inconsistencies identified in
applying some of the offsetting criteria of AASB 132, including clarifying the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable tight of set-off” and that some gross settlement systems
may be considered equivalent to net settlement.

When AASB 2012-3 is first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2015, there will be no
impact on the entity as this standard merely clarifies existing requitements in AASB 132.

AASB 2013-3 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (effective
from 1 January 2014)

These narrow-scope amendments address disclosure of information about the recoverable
amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal.

When developing IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, the IASB decided to amend IAS 36
Impairment of Assets to require disclosures about the recoverable amount of impaired
assets. The TASB noticed however that some of the amendments made in introducing
those requirements resulted in the requirement being more broadly applicable than the
IASB had intended. These amendments to IAS 36 therefore clatify the IASB’s original
intention that the scope of those disclosures is limited to the recoverable amount of
impaired assets that is based on fair value less costs of disposal. AASB 2013-3 makes the
equivalent amendments to AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.

When these amendments are first adopted for the yeat ending 30 June 2015, they are
unlikely to have any significant impact on the entity given that they ate largely of the nature
of clarification of existing requitements.

AASB 1031 Materiality (effective from 1 January 2014)

The revised AASB 1031 is an intetim standatd that cross-references to other Standards and
the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (issued
December 2013) that contain guidance on matetiality. The AASB is progtessively removing
references to AASB 1031 in all Standards and Interpretations, and once all these references
have been removed, AASB 1031 will be withdrawn.

When the revised AASB 1031 is first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2015, it is
unlikely to have any significant impact on the entity.

21



GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P.
For the year ended 30 June 2014

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Conceptual
Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments (Part B: Materiality) (effective from 1
January 2014)

Part B of AASB 2013-9 deletes references to AASB 1031 in vatious Australian Accounting
Standards (including Interpretations).

When these amendments are first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2015, they are
unlikely to have any significant impact on the entity.

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Conceptual
Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments (Part C: Financial Instruments)
(effective from 1 January 2015)
These amendments:
e add a new chapter on hedge accounting to AASB 9 Financial Instruments,
substantially overhauling previous accounting requirements in this area;

o allow the changes to address the so-called ‘own credit’ issue that were alteady
included in AASB 9 to be applied in isolation without the need to change any
other accounting for financial instruments; and

e defer the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 from 1 January 2015 to 1 Januaty
2017.

Note that, subsequent to issuing these amendments, the AASB has issued AASB 2014-1
which defers the effective date of AASB 9 to 1 January 2018.

The entity has not yet assessed the full impact of these amendments.

AASB15 Revenue from Contracts with Customer (effective from 1 January 2017)
AASB15:
e replaces IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and some revenue-
related Interpretations
® establishes a new control-based revenue recognition model
® changes the basis for deciding whether revenue is to be recognised over time or at
a point in time
e provides new and more detailed guidance on specific topics (e.g., multiple element
arrangements, variable pricing, rights of return, warranties and licensing)
e expands and improves disclosures about revenue
In the Australian context, AASB 15 will apply to contracts of not-for-profit (NFP) entities
that are exchange transactions. AASB 1004 Conttibutions will continue to apply to non-
exchange transactions until the Income from Transactions of NFP Entities Project is
completed (with an Exposure Draft inviting public comment on those proposals tatgeted
for issue in Q1 2015).

The entity has not yet assessed the full impact of this Standard.

4 Financial risk management

The Partnership's activities expose it to a vatiety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity tisk. The
Partnership's overall risk management program seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the financial performance of the Partnership. The Partnership uses detivative financial
instruments to manage interest rate risk exposures on borrowings.
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Risk management is carried out by the senior management team. The senior management
team identifies, evaluates, reports and manages financial tisks in close co-operation with the
Pattnership's operation units in accordance with the Board policy.

The Partnership holds the following financial instruments:

2014 2013
$000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 28,519 20,607
Trade and other receivables 26,758 24,264
55,277 44,871
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 21,113 21,083
Interest bearing liabilities 64,026 68,526
Derivative financial instruments 1,487 1,682
Other liabilities 634 100
87,260 91,391
(a) Market risk
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial asset or financial
liability will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises interest
rate tisk.
The Partnership's main interest rate risk arises from long term botrowings, cash,
receivables and derivatives. Borrowings issued at vatiable rates expose the Partnership to
cash flow interest rate risk. Partnership has maintained at least 75% of its long term
borrowings at fixed rate using interest rate swaps.
The Partnership manages its cash flow interest rate tisk by using interest rate derivatives.
Such interest rate derivatives have the economic effect of converting borrowings from
floating rates to fixed rates. Under the interest rate detivatives, the Partnership agrees with
other parties to exchange, at specified intervals (mainly monthly), the difference between
fixed contract rates and floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed
notional principal amounts.
As at the end of the reporting period, the Partnership had the following vatiable rate cash
and borrowings outstanding:
2014 2013
Weighted Weighted
average average
interest rate Balance interest rate Balance
% $000 % $000
Cash and cash equivalents 1.87% 28,519 2.11% 20,607
Borrowings — unhedged portion 5.58% (16,619) 7.32% (18,088)
Net exposure to cash flow interest rate risk 11,900 2,519
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On 11 November 2011, the Partnership’s Aus Hold Co subsidiaty bottowed $76,500
(which included $2,850 loan fee deducted from the proceeds by the lendets) from a
consortium of three banks in Australia (Term Loan A and Tetm Loan B, collectively
“Term Loans” or “Tertm Loan”). The intetest rate on §51,750 of the Term Loan at 30
June 2014 has been fixed until the repayment date (either by scheduled principal payments
or the date of maturity) via a fixed rate interest swap. The interest rate spread is subject to
increase and decrease based on the leverage ratio as defined in the Term Loan agreement.

An official increase/dectease in interest rates of 100 (2013: 100) basis points would have
favourable/adverse effect on profit befote tax of §119 (2013: favourable/adverse $25) per
annum.

(i) Foreign currency risk

Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from the sales and purchases by its subsidiaries
that are denominated in currencies other than the subsidiaties” functional currency.

The Partnership does not enter into forward exchange contracts to mitigate the exposure
to foreign currency risk.

Foreign cutrency denominated financial assets and liabilities which expose the Partnership
to currency risk are disclosed below. The amounts shown ate those reported to key
management translated into AUD at the closing rate:

Short Term Exposure

Long Term Exposure
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usD GBP CAD BRL Other usb CAD BRL
$'000 $°000 $'000 $°000 $’000 $°000 $'000 $°000
30 June 2014
Financial assets 289 10,351 6,797 447 35 - - -
Financial liabilites  (2,868) (5,927) (2,950) (475) (48) - (523) (38)
Total exposure (2,579) 4,424 3,847 (28) (13) - (523) (38)
30 June 2013
Financial assets 131 8,642 7,219 402 34 - - -
Financial liabilities (830) (6,080) (3,808) (344) (133) (500) (33) (14)
Total exposure (699) 2,562 3,411 58 (99) (500) (33) (14)

There ate no material transactions in subsidiaries entities made in currencies other than the
functional currency. Therefore no sensitivity analysis on foreign currencies affecting profit
or loss has been prepared.

The Partnership also has the following intercompany loan payable/receivables within the
group translated to AUD at closing rate as follow:

AUD CAD GBP BRL
$000 $000 $000 $°000
30 June 2014
Intercompany loan within the group
entities between functional cutrency 55,937

(AUD) and USD

Intercompany loan within the group
entities between functional currencies 22,174 10,704 2,799
(CAD, GBP, BRL) and USD
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AUD CAD GBP BRL
$000 $000 $000 $°000
30 June 2013
Intercompany loan within the group
entities between functional currency 81,478

(AUD) and USD

Intercompany loan within the group
entities between functional currencies 23924 9,827 1,521
(CAD, GBP, BRL) and USD

As shown in the table above, the group is primarily exposed to changes in USD/AUD. The
group pre-tax exposure if Australian dollar/ US dollar is increased/decreased by 10% are
as follow:

FY 14 A$’000 FY 13 A$’000
Exposure of USD/AUD for 4,921 7,216
exchange rate movement increase
by 10%
Exposure of USD/AUD for 6,014 8,820
exchange rate movement decrease
by 10%

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a
financial instrument and cause a financial loss. The Pattnership has exposures to credit risk
on cash and cash equivalents and receivables. Our maximum exposure to credit risk is
based on the total value of our financial assets net of any provision for loss.

Ongoing credit evaluation is petformed on the financial condition of customers and, where
appropriate, an allowance for doubtful debtors is raised. Such credit evaluation is an
internal function and the Partnership does not use external ctedit agencies in its evaluation
of credit worthiness.

The Partnership's policy is to engage major financial institutions to provide financial
facilities to the Partnership, thereby minimising credit risk on cash deposits. The
Partnership does not have any cash balances or detivative financial instruments with any
financial institution rated below “A”.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquudity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities, and the ability to
refinance borrowings.

(i) Financing arrangement

The Partnership had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the
reporting period:
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2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Total facilities
Line of credit 5,301 5,472
Bank loan facility 64,365 71,250
69,666 76,722
Used at balance date
Line of credit 1,754 275
Bank loan facility 64,365 71,250
66,119 71,525
Unused at balance date
Line of credit 3,547 5,197
Bank loan facility - -
3,547 5,197
(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities
Carrying
Between Between Total Amount
Within 1and 2 2and 5 Over contractual (assets)/
1 year years years 5 years cash flows liabilities
$000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $°000
At 30 June 2014
Non-derivatives
Non-interest bearing
Trade and other payables 21,113 - - - 21,113 21,113
Other liabilities - 634 - 634 634
Interest bearing
Bank loans 6,183 7,558 50,624 - 64,365 62,272
Line of credit 1,754 - - - 1,754 1,754
Derivatives
Interest rate swaps - - 1,487 - 1,487 1,487
Total 29,050 7,558 52,745 - 89,353 87,260
Carrying
Between Between Total Amount
Within 1and 2 2and 5 Over contractual (assets)
1 year years years 5 years cash flows liabilities
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
At 30 June 2013
Non-derivatives
Non-interest bearing
Trade and other payables 21,083 - - - 21,083 21,083
Other liabilities - 100 - 100 100
Interest bearing
Bank loans 6,886 6,184 58,180 - 71,250 68,251
Line of credit 275 - - - 275 275
Derivatives -
Interest rate swaps - - 1,682 - 1,682 1,682
Total 28,244 6,184 59,962 - 94,390 91,391
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(d) Fair value measurements

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated fot recognition
and measurement or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures requites disclosure of fair value measurements
by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

(a) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level
1)

(b) inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are obsetvable for the

asset or liability, either directly (as prices) ot indirectly (detived from prices) (level 2), and

(©) inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on obsetrvable market data

(unobservable inputs) (level 3).
The following table presents the Partnership’s assets and liabilities measured and
recognised at fair value at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013.

30 June 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$°000 $°000 $'000 $°000

Assets

Total Assets - - - -

Liabilities

Derivatives — interest rate swaps - 1,487 - 1,487

Total Liabilities - 1,487 - 1,487

at 30 June 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$000 $°000 $'000 $'000

Assets

Total Assets - - - -

Liabilities

Derivatives — interest rate swaps - 1,682 - 1,682

Total Liabilities - 1,682 - 1,682

(i) Valuation techniques used to determine fait values

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include the fair value of
interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows
based on observable yield cutves.

All of the resulting fair value estimates ate included in level 2.

5 Capital Management

(a) Risk management

The Partnership’s objectives when managing capital ate to

(i) safeguard its ability to continue as a going concetn so it cah continue to provide tetutns
to the partners and

(i) maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
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In order to accomplish these goals, the Partnetship has entered into a secured bank loan
with regard to its Australia operations. Under the term of the loans, the borrowers are
required to comply with the following financial covenants:
(a) Total gearing ratio (not greater than 3.00x at 30 June 2014) (actual
1.97x) '
(b) Interest coverage ratio (at least 3.25x at 30 June 2014) (actual 4.97x)
(c) Debt service coverage ratio (at least 1.10x at 30 June 2014) (actual
1.96x)
The borrowers were in compliance with these and all other requirements of the loan for all
periods presented.

6 Interests in subsidiaries

Set out below details of the subsidiaties held directly and indirectly by the Patrtnership:

Name of the Country of Incorporation & Proportion of Ownership
Subsidiary Principal Place of Business Interests Held by the
Partnership
30-June-2014 30-June-2013
GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Luxembourg) Luxembourg 100% 100%
S.a.rl (“LuxCo 1")
GTCR Gridlock Holdings, inc. ('US Hold Co”) United States (Delaware) 100% 100%
Global Traffic Network, Inc. (“"GTN") United States (Nevada) 100% 100%
GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Australia) Pty Australia (NSW) 100% 100%
Limited (“Aus Hoid Co")
The Australia Traffic Network Pty Limited Australia (NSW) 100% 100%
(‘ATN")
GTCR Gridlock Management, Inc. ("US United States (Delaware) 100% 100%
Mgmt. Co”)
Global Alert Network, Inc. ("GAN") United States (Nevada) 100% 100%
GTCR Gridlock International (Luxembourg)  Luxembourg 100% 100%
S.a.r.l ("LuxCo 2")
Canadian Traffic Network ULC (“CTN”) Canada (Alberta) 100% 100%
GTCR Gridlock Holdings (UK) Limited ("UK  United Kingdom (England & Wales) 100% 100%
Hold Co”)
Global Traffic Network Commercial (UK) United Kingdom (England & Wales) 100% 100%
Limited (“UK Commercial")
Global Traffic Network (UK) Limited United Kingdom (England & Wales) 100% 100%
("UKTN")
GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Brazil) S.a.r.l. Luxembourg 100% 100%
("LuxCo 3")
BTN Servicos de Informacao do Transito ltda Brazil 100% 100%
(‘BTN")
7 Revenue
2014 2013
$°000 $°000

From continuing operations
Sales revenue
Sale of advertising tags — net of agency commissions 138,049 125,004

138,049 125,004

Other income

Interest 463 358
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8 Expenses

Loss before income tax includes the following specific expenses:

Defined contribution superannuation expenses

Amortisation and depreciation

Finance costs of bank loan and line of credit

Rental expenses relating to operating leases

Foreign exchange gain (loss) on intercompany loans and advances within

the group

9 Income tax expense

29

2014 2013
$000 $000
759 742
23,228 22,998
5,822 6,827
1,518 1,517
3,234 (9,825)

The major components of tax expense and the reconciliation of the expected tax expense
based on the statutory tax rate at 35% (2013: 35%) and the reported tax expense in profit

or loss are as follows:

Loss before tax
Tax rate: 35%

Taxes on foreign earnings

Tax effect of permanent differences

Foreign tax credits

Unrecognized tax losses

Foreign jurisdiction tax, net of federal tax benefit
Over-provision for income tax in prior year

Effect of tax rate changes in United Kingdom

Expiration of statute of limitations on uncertain tax position
Other

Income tax expense / (benefit)

Expense
Current
Deferred
Income tax expense / (benefit)

Other comprehensive income
Current
Deferred

2014 2013
$000 $'000
(1,475) (22,057)
(516) (7,720)
1,593 812
82 52
(1,888) (496)
1,805 2,258
(20) -
(74) (696)
(507) .
(498) .
12 .
(11) (5,790)
2014 2013
$000 $'000
5,491 1,171
(5,502) (6.961)
(11) (5,790)
(68) (151)
(68) (151)

The recognition of deferred tax assets is limited to the extent that the Partnership
anticipates making sufficient taxable profits in the future to absorb the reversal of
the underlying timing differences. The Partnership has an unrecognised deferred
tax asset of $7,596 (2013: $5,743) in relation to the tax losses as management
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does not anticipate the Partnership will make sufficient taxablie profits in the

foreseeable future to utilise this asset.

10 Auditor’s remuneration
Auditor remuneration details are as follows:

2014 2013
$ $
Audit and review of financial statements
Auditors of the Partnership:
Audit services 401,000 465,000
Remuneration from audit of financial statements 401,000 465,000
Other services
Auditors of the Partnership:
Taxation compliance 233,000 196,000
Other 90,000 246,000
Total other service remuneration 323,000 442,000
Total auditor’s remuneration 724,000 907,000
11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist the following:
2014 2013 2012
$°000 $°000 $°000

Cash at bank and in hand:

Cash at bank and in hand 23,769 15,857 12,818

Short term deposits 4,750 4,750 -
Cash and cash equivalents 28,519 20,607 12,818
12 Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables consist of the following:

2014 2013 2014
$'000 $'000 $°000

Trade receivables 27,444 24,623 24,855
Allowance for doubtful debtors (686) (359)
Trade receivables 26,758 24,264 24,383

All amounts are short-term. The net cattying value of trade receivables is considered a

reasonable approximation of fair value.

All of the Partnership’s trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indicators of

impairment. Certain trade receivables were found to be impaited and impairment losses of
$371 (2013: $(76)) has been recorded accordingly within selling, general and administrative

expenses.
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'The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts can be reconciled as follows:

2014 2013
$°000 $’000
Balance 1 July (359) (472)
Amounts written off (uncollectable) 44 37
Impairment reversal (loss) (371) 76
Balance 30 June (686) (359)
Trade receivables aging analysis at 30 June is:
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
Not past due 23,730 20,666
Not more than 3 months 1,430 2,068
More than 3 months 2,284 1,889
Total 27,444 24,623

13 Other assets
Other assets reflected on the consolidated statement of financial position consist of the

following:
2014 2013 2012
$°000 $°000 $°000
Current
Prepaids and other current assets 980 1,684 2,739
980 1,684 2,739
Non-Current
Other assets 243 278 234

243 278 234

14 Goodwill
The movements in the net carrying amount of goodwill and trade names (Note 15) are as

follows:
Trade Names Goodwill

2014 2013 2014 2013

$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Gross carrying amount
Balance 1 July 12,373 12,156 93,092 93,903
Net exchange difference 45 217 623 267
Balance 30 June 12,418 12,373 93,715 94,170
Impairment loss - - - (1,078)
Carrying amount at 30 June 12,418 12,373 93,715 93,092

Due to the long term and indefinite nature of goodwill and trade names, amottisation
expense is not reflected and the Partnership annually reviews goodwill and trade names for
impairment.

In March 2013, the Partnership discontinued its operations related to GAN and goodwill
related to the acquisition of GAN of $1,078 was written off and recognised as a loss.

AN
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Impairment testing
For the purpose of annual impairment testing, goodwill and trade names are allocated to

the following cash-generating units, which are the units expected to benefit from the
synergies of the business combinations in which the goodwill and trade names pertain.

2014 2013
$'000 $°000
Australia 94,171 94,052
Canada 3,360 3,520
United Kingdom 8,602 7,893
Goodwill and trade names allocation at 30 June 106,133 105,465

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units were determined based on value-in-
use calculations, covering a detailed five-year forecast, followed by an extrapolation of
expected cash flows for the units’ remaining useful lives using the growth rates determined
by management. The present value of the expected cash flows of each segment is
determined by applying a suitable discount rate.

Growth rates and discount rates used in calculations:

Discount Rates

2014 2014 2013 2013
Post-tax  Pre-Tax Post-tax Pre-Tax
Australia 12.1% 13.3% 9.3% 11.0%
Canada 10.3% 11.7% 9.8% 11.4%
United Kingdom 12.1% 12.8% 12.0% 12.8%

Average Growth Rates

Revenue EBITDA
2014 2013 2014 2013
Australia 6% 6% 14% 18%
Canada 4% 2% (3%) (2%)
United Kingdom 3% 3% (1%) 0%

Growth rates
The growth rates reflect lower than the historic revenue growth rate of respective cash-

generating units in the local cutrency of the respective units. Expenses ate then estimated
based on a projected growth rate if fixed in nature ot in relation to revenue if variable. The
base year for each calculation is the Company’s approved internal budget for the coming
fiscal year. The long term growth rate utilized was 1%.

Discount rates
The discount rates reflect appropriate adjustments relating to market risk and specific risk

factors of each unit.

Cash flow assumptions
The calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by

management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year petiod assume a
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1% long term growth rate which does not exceed the long-term average growth rates for
the industry in which each CGU operates.

Significant estimate — impairment charge

In March 2013, the Partnership discontinued its operations telated to GAN and goodwill
related to the acquisition of GAN of $1,078 was written off and recognised as a loss. This
was done following a decision in June 2012 to reclassify the GAN subsidiary as held for
sale. In March 2013, the Partnership determined that it was unlikely that the assets would
be sold and the operations to which they pertained were discontinued. Intangible assets
consisting of mobile telephone technology was also written off in 2013 as a component of
discontinued operations on the consolidated statements of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income.

Significant estimate: Impact of possible changes in key assumptions

Management is not currently aware of any other reasonably possible changes in key
assumptions that would result in an impairment.

15 Intangible assets
Detail of the Partnership’s intangible assets and their carrying amounts are as follows:

Station Advertising

contracts contracts Trade names Total
$'000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 July 2013 87,464 64,862 12,373 164,699
Net exchange differences 318 241 45 604
Batance at 30 June 2014 87,782 65,103 12,418 165,303
Amortisation and impairment
Balance at 1 July 2013 (10,933) (25,224) - (36,157)
Amortisation (6,271) (14,472) - (20,743)
Net exchange differences (38) (91) - (129)
Balance at 30 June 2014 (17.242) (39,787) - (57,029)
Carrying amount 30 June 2014 70,540 25,316 12,418 108,274
Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 July 2012 85,919 63,721 12,156 161,796
Net exchange differences 1,545 1,141 217 2,903
Balance at 30 June 2013 87,464 64,862 12,373 164,699
Amortisation and impairment
Balance at 1 July 2012 (4,585) (10,595) - (15,180)
Amortisation (6,154) (14,199) - (20,353)
Net exchange differences (194) (430) - (624)
Balance at 30 June 2013 (10,933) (25,224) - (36,157)
Carrying amount 30 June 2013 76,531 39,638 12,373 128,542

‘The Partnership expects to either renew or replace its advertiser contracts and renew its
station contracts beyond their expected life. Amortisation expense for the years ended 30
June 2014 and 30 June 2013 was $20,743 and $20,353 respectively. In March 2013, the
Partnership discontinued its operations related to GAN and intangible assets consisting of
mobile telephone technology of $1,335 were written off and recognised as a loss.
Indefinite lived intangible assets (trade names) are also subject to impairment testing as
disclosed in Note 14.
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16 Property, plant and equipment
Details of the Partnership’s property, plant and equipment and theit carrying amount are as

follows:

Gross carrying amount
Balance 1 July 2013
Additions

Disposals

Net exchange differences
Balance 30 June 2014

Depreciation and impairment
Balance 1 July 2013

Disposals

Net exchange differences
Depreciation

Balance 30 June 2014

Carrying amount 30 June 2014

Gross carrying amount
Balance 1 July 2012

Additions

Disposals

Net exchange differences
Balance 30 June 2013
Depreciation and impairment
Balance 1 July 2012

Disposals

Net exchange differences
Depreciation

Balance 30 June 2013
Carrying amount 30 June 2013

17 Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities
Current taxes can be summarised as follows:

Current tax liabilities

Recording,
Helicopters and broadcasting Furniture,
fixed wing and studio equipment and
aircraft equipment other Total
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
8,633 496 930 10,059
2,244 14 216 2,474
- - (301) (301)
(376) (11) 247 (140)
10,501 499 1,092 12,092
(3,631) (234) (578) (4,443)
- - 295 295
138 5 (255) (112)
(2,160) (102) (223) (2,485)
(5,653) (331) (761) (6,745)
4,848 168 331 5,347
Recording,
Helicopters and broadcasting Furniture,
fixed wing and studio equipment and
aircraft equipment other Total
$°000 $'000 $'000 $°000
6,298 452 805 7,555
2,239 29 165 2,433
- - (80) (80)
96 15 40 151
8,633 496 930 10,059
(1,641) (107) (261) (2,009)
- - 80 80
219 (8) (80) 131
(2,209) (119) (317) (2,645)
(3,631) (234) (578) (4,443)
5,002 262 352 5,616
2014 2013
$'000 $°000
1,672 316
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Deferred taxes arising from temporary differences can be summatised as follows:

Recognised
Recognised in Profit
Deferred Tax Assets 1-Jul-2013 in OCI* and Loss 30-Jun-2014
$000 $'000 $°000 $°000
Annual leave accrual 187 - - 187
Foreign tax credit 720 - (720) -
Long service leave provision 301 - 41 342
Audit accrual 52 - 2 54
Superannuation accrued 17 - 5 22
Deferred rent 9 - 7 2
Stock Compensation 10 - (10) -
Property, plant & equipment - - 7 7
Hedging 589 (68) - 521
Allowance for doubtful debts 64 - 109 173
;%:eerzlfcii foreign exchange 2,649 ) (838) 1,811
Deferred transaction costs 932 - (98) 834
Other - - 8 8
5,530 (68) (1,501) 3,961
* Other Comprehensive Income
Recognised
Recognised in Profit
Deferred Tax Liabilities 1-Jul-2013 in OCI* and Loss 30-Jun-2014
$'000 $°000 $’000 $°000
Leasehold accounting depreciation (67) - 78 11
Intangibles 29,946 - (5,561) 24,385
Prepaid expenses 8 - 8) -
Fringe benefit tax - - 2 2
Uncertain tax position on transfer
oricing p ° 500 (500) »
Deemed U.S. branch attribution 2,776 - (913) 1,863
33,163 - (6,902) 26,261
* Other Comprehensive Income
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
Deferred tax assets consist of:
Current 638 1,225
Non-current 3,323 4,305
3,961 5,530
Deferred tax liabilities consist of:
Current 8 7
Non-current 26,253 33,156
26,261 33,163

18 Assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale and
discontinued operations

In June 2012, the Partnership reclassified its GAN subsidiaty as held for sale. In March

2013, the Partnership determined that it was unlikely that the assets would be sold and the

operations to which they pertained were discontinued. Intangible assets consisting of

mobile telephone technology and goodwill related to the acquisition of GAN were written
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off in 2013 as a component of discontinued operations on the consolidated statements of

operations.

Operating loss of GAN until the date net assets were wtitten off are as follows:

Revenue
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses

2013
$'000

(514)
(158)

Loss for the year before income tax from discontinued operations
Income tax benefit

(672)
116

Loss up to date net assets written off

(556)

Write-off of net assets

(2,413)

Loss from discontinued operations

Cash flows generated by GAN for the 30 June 2013 reporting petiod until the date net
assets were written off are as follows:

Operating activities
Financing activities
Investing activities

(2,969)

2013
$'000

(868)

Cash flows from discontinued operations

19 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables recognised consist of the following:

2014 2013 2012
$'000 $'000 $°000
Current
Trade payables 13,973 15,953 12,855
Accrued payroll expenses 4,134 3,022 2,967
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,006 2,108 2,157
21,113 21,083 17,979
Non-current
Due to related parties 54 56 50
54 56 50

All current amounts are short-term. The cartying values of trade payables and other
payables are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Goods and services, sales and value added taxes, which are charged by vendors to
operating subsidiaries in Australia, Canada and United Kingdom are included in trade
payables until paid. The net amount of goods and services, sales and value added tax
payable (after deduction of amounts paid to vendors of the Pattnership) is included as a

(868)

component of trade and other payables on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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20 Provisions

2014 2013 2012
$°000 $°000 $°000
Current
Long service leave provision 677 621 331
677 621 331
Non-Current
Long service leave provision 460 383 482
Leasehold restoration 95 95 95
555 478 577
1,232 1,099 908

The current portion of the long setvice leave provision includes all amounts that ate either
unconditional ot scheduled to become unconditional within 12 months. The entire
amount of the unconditional and scheduled to become unconditional long setvice leave are
presented as current since the Partnership does not have the unconditional right to defer
settlement. However, based on past experience the Partnership does not expect all
employees to take the full amount of their long service leave ot tequite payment within the
next 12 months.

21 Deferred revenue

2014 2013 2012

$°000 $'000 $°000
Deferred revenue 1,532 248 374
1,532 248 374

Payments received or amounts invoiced in advance are deferred until earned and such
amounts are included as a component of deferred revenue.

22 Financial liabilities

2014 2013 2012
$°000 $’000 $°000
Current
Current portion of long term debt 6,183 5,250 3,750
Line of credit 1,754 275 -
7,937 5,525 3,750
Non-current
Long term debt, less current portion 56,089 63,001 67,371
56,089 63,001 67,371

For the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013, $880 and $907, respectively of otiginal
issue discount and deferred loan costs were recognised as expense and are a component of
interest expense on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Assets pledged as security

Bank loan facilities are secured by a first ranking chatge over all ATN and Aus Hold Co
assets. The line of credit is unsecured but is guaranteed by both GTCR Fund X/A AIV LP
and GTCR Fund X/C AIV LP, both of which ate pattners in the Partnership.
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23 Derivatives

2014 2013 2012

$’°000 $°000 $'000
Interest rate swap contract 1,487 1,682 1,933
1,487 1,682 1,933

(i) Classification of detivatives
Derivatives are classified as hedging instruments.

On 24 November 2011, as a requirement of the Term Loan, Aus Hold Co entered into
fixed rate swap agreements (“Interest Rate Swaps™) under which, effective 10 February
2012, 75% of the Term Loans outstanding balance (prior to any voluntary or mandatory
prepayments under the excess cash flow sweep provisions of the Term Loan) is fixed at
4.21% until November 11, 2016, the maturity date of the Term Loan. Interest expense
related to the Interest Rate Swaps was $798 and $510 for the years ended 30 June 2014 and
30 June 2013, respectively, and is a component of finance costs on the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The initial notional amounts
of the Interest Rate Swaps were each $28,688 and reduces by a portion of the scheduled
principal payments of the Term Loans. The notional amount of the Interest Rate Swaps at
30 June 2014 was $51,750. At inception and on a quarterly basis, the Partnetship
determined that these Interest Rate Swaps wete highly effective and therefore, recorded the
change in fair value of $163 for the year ended 30 June 2013 and $126 for the year ended
30 June 2014 in other comprehensive income (net of taxes) on the consolidated statement

of partners’ equity.
(i) Fair value measurement
For information about the methods and assumptions used in determining the fair value of

derivatives please refer to note 4(d).

24  Other liabilities

2014 2013 2012

$'000 $’000 $°000
Withholding tax 451 - -
Other 183 100 37
634 100 37

25 Partners’ Equity
Partnership equity consists of Class A LP units (“Prefetred Units”), Class B LP units, and
Class D LP units (collectively, “Common Units™). The partnership units authorised,

issued, and outstanding as of 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 are as follows:

Authotised, granted and outstanding:

2014 2014 2013 2013 2012 2012
$'000 Per unit $'000 Per unit $'000 Per unit
Class A LP Units: 182,187 222,786 $1,222.84 204,034 $1,119.92 188,536  $1,034.85
Class B LP & GP Units: 37,191,003 3,633 $0.10 3,633 $0.10 3,633 $0.10
226,419 207,667 192,169
Class D LP Units: 3,572,018 1,300 $0.36 959 $0.27 388 $0.11

1,300 959

388
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The Class D LP units represent units reserved as equity incentives for management and
certain consultants of the Partnership and its subsidiaries. Approximately 11.50% of the
common equity of the Partnership is reserved for incentive compensation. The
Partnership granted an additional 1,683,801 of Class D LP units subsequent to the
acquisition of GTN.

The Preferred Units accrue a return of 8% (“Preferred Return”) compounded on
September 30, December 31, March 31 and June 30 of each year. The Preferred Unit
holders receive outstanding Preferred Returns and principal ptior to any distribution to the
Common Units. For the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013, $18,752 and $15,498,
respectively of Preferred Return was accrued and there was no payment made duting the
period. It is not anticipated that the Prefetred Return will be paid as earned in the future
and will likely continue to be added to the Prefetred Unit holdet’s pattner capital accounts.
Any redemptions and distributions are at the discretion of the general partner not the
limited partners.

Profit and losses are allocated ratably among partner capital accounts based upon the
number of LP Units held by each Partner to the extent there are positive partner capital
accounts. If certain partner capital accounts ate reduced to zero, the excess losses are
absorbed by those partners with positive partner capital accounts. To the extent there are
profits in future years, the Preferred Unit holder’s pattner accounts will recover their
original contributed capital ptior to allocating any profits to the Class B LP or Class D L.P
Unit holder capital accounts. No pattner shall be requited to pay to any othet partnet ot
the Partnership any deficit or negative balance which may exist from time to time in such
partnet’s capital account, including upon and after termination of the Partnetship.

26 Equity based compensation

The Partnership has made available the equivalent of 4,832,730 of Class D LP units for
incentive grants to management and certain consultants (“Grantee”) of the Partnership.
The Class D LP units vest 20% on each of the first five anniversary dates of the grant and
immediately vests upon the sale of the Partnership but otherwise do not have a termination
date. Upon separation of employment, the Partnership may repurchase any unvested Class
D LP units for the lower of a) the Grantee’s original cost and b) fair market value. The
Partnership may repurchase any vested Class D LP units at fair market value, except in
cases of termination for cause which such Class D LP units may be repurchased at the
same cost as unvested Class D LP units. In the event of a Grantee’s separation of
employment, the Partnership has six months to provide notice of its intent to repurchase
the Class D LP units, which in certain cases can be extended to up to eight months should
not all the partners exercise their option to repurchase the Class D LP units and these Class
D LP units are offered to the partners already participating in the putchase. Upon sale of
the Partnership, the Partnership has the right to escrow 25% of the proceeds (“Continuing
Incentive Amount”) of the Class D LP units to ensure continued service from the Grantee
at their current compensation (excluding equity ot other incentive based compensation) for
one year. Should the Grantee either complete the year of setvice or be terminated by the
acquirer (except for cause) the escrow shall be released to the Grantee otherwise the
Continuing Incentive Amount shall be paid pro rata to the Class B LP unit holders. The
Class D LP unit agreement also contains a restrictive covenant which limits the Grantees
ability to compete with the Pattnership (including its subsidiaries) for 48 months following
the grant date.

Due to the varying tax laws of the countries in which the Partnership’s subsidiaries operate,
certain of these incentive grants have been structured as phantom equity units, which are
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intended to mirror the economics of the Class D LP units (“Phantom Equity”). As such,
the terms of individual country’s Phantom Equity units vary from country to country in
otder to best reflect the economics of the Class D LP units. Each Phantom Equity unit
represents a contractual right to the economic value of a Class D LP unit. "The Phantom
Equity units vest 20% on each of the first five anniversaty dates of the grant and
immediately vests upon the sale of the Partnership but otherwise do not have a termination
date. Any unvested Phantom Equity units are forfeited upon separation of employment
and all Phantom Equity units (vested and unvested) are forfeited if the Grantee is
terminated for cause. In the event of a Grantee’s separation of employment, the
Pattnership for six months following the event has a cash-out option which allows the
Partnership to repurchase the vested Phantom Equity units at the fair market value of a
hypothetical Class D LP unit with the same vesting schedule and a participation threshold
of USD $0.10 per unit. Upon sale of the Partnership, the Partnership has the right to
escrow 25% of the proceeds (“Continuing Incentive Amount”) of the Phantom Units to
ensure continued service from the Grantee at their current compensation (excluding equity
or other incentive based compensation) for one yeat. Should the Grantee either complete
the year of service or be terminated by the acquiter (except for cause) the escrow shall be
released to the Grantee otherwise the Continuing Incentive Amount shall be forfeited.
Since the Phantom Equity units provide no rights to acquite equity in the Partnership and
it 1s expected that these Phantom Equity units will be cash-settled, the Phantom Equity
expense is treated as a liability rather than additional capital. The Phantom Equity unit
agreement also contains a restrictive covenant which limits the Grantees ability to compete
with the Partnership (including its subsidiaties) for 48 months following the grant date.

Noncash compensation expense related to Class D LP units (and Phantom Equity units) is
included as a component of selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statements of operations and was $400 and $634 for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30
June 2013, respectively. The Partnership does not anticipate incurring (other than de
minimus) cash costs relating to the Class D LP units priot to sale of the Partnership since it
does not currently repurchase Class D LP units issued with regards to equity-based
compensation. Class D LP units that are issued, outstanding ot available for future
issuance is summarised below:

2014 2013
Class D LP units available for incentive compensation 4,832,730 4,832,730
Class D LP units outstanding (3,572,018) (3,672,018)
Phantom Equity outstanding (Class D LP unit equivalents) (840,955) (840,955)
Class D LP units available for issuance 419,757 419,757

2014 2013
Class D LP units outstanding, beginning of period 3,672,018 3,672,018
Class D LP units issued - -
Class D LP units outstanding, end of period 3,572,018 3,572,018
Phantom Equity outstanding (Class D LP unit equivalents) outstanding,
beginning of period 840,955 840,955
Phantom Equity issued (Class D LP unit equivalents) - -
Phantom Equity outstanding (Class D LP unit equivalents) end of period 840,955 840,955
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A summary of the status of the Partnership’s unvested Class D LP units and Class D LP
unit Phantom Equity unit equivalents as of years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013,
and changes during the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013, is summarised below:

Unvested at 30 June 2012
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Unvested at 30 June 2013
CGranted

Vested

Forfeited

Unvested at 30 June 2014

Number of Class D Weighted Average Number of Class D Weighted Average

LP Phantom Grant Date Fair LP Units Grant Date Fair
Equity Units Value (USD) Value (USD)
840,955 0.62 3,572,018 0.56
(168,191) 0.62 (714,403) 0.56
672,764 0.62 2,857,615 0.56
(168,191) 0.62 (714,404) 0.56
504,573 $ 0.62 2,143,211 § 0.56

The fair value of these units was estimated at the date of the grant with an option allocation
methodology utilising the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The option allocation
methodology determines the fair value of each patticipating class of equity based on the
Partnership’s fair value of total equity and liquidation preferences with the following

assumptions:

) estimated term based on simplified plain-vanilla method (4 yeats),

(i1) a historical volatility over a period commensutate with the expected term based on
observations of volatility of publicly traded peers on a weekly basis (30.0%),

(i)  a risk-free interest rate consistent with the expected tetrm and based on the U.S.
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant (0.71%),

(iv) annual dividend yield on preferred units consistent with the equity based
compensation agreements (8% for Class A LP units, 0% for Class B and Class D L.P
units). The Partnership estimated the fair value of total equity at the date of grant
using the market approach.

Based on these assumptions, the fait value with regards to all granted Class D LP units was
$1,985. As of 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013, there was $793 and $1,091 of total
unrecognised compensation cost related to equity based compensation, tespectively. The
cost of the unrecognised compensation is expected to be recognised over a weighted
average period of 2.25 years on a pro rata basis over the vesting petiod. This expense is
based on an assumption that there will be no fotfeitures; this assumption is based on the
positions of the grantees and the low number of participants and the assumption that all
grantees will meet any and all post sale obligations in otder to receive any Continuing
Incentive Amounts under the provisions of the grant agreements.

Based on these assumptions, the fair value with regards to all granted Phantom Equity
units as of the grant date is $435. As of 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013, there was $193
and $271 of total unrecognised compensation cost related to equity based compensation,
respectively. The cost of the unrecognised compensation is expected to be recognised over
a weighted average period of 2.25 years on a pro rata basis over the vesting petiod. This
expense is based on an assumption that there will be no forfeitures; this assumption is
based on the positions of the grantees and the low number of patticipants and the
assumption that all grantees will meet any and all post sale obligations in otdet to receive
any Continuing Incentive Amounts under the provisions of the grant agreements.
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The Partnership recognised §19 and $19 of income tax benefit related to equity-based
compensation for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013, respectively.

27 Leases

The Partnership has various non-cancellable, long-term operating leases for its facilities,
aviation services and office equipment. The facility leases have escalation clauses and
provisions for payment of taxes, insurance, maintenance and repair expenses. Total
expense under these leases is recognised rateably over the lease terms ot based on usage,
based on the type of agreement. Renewal options are not included in future minimum
payments. Future minimum payments, by year and in the aggregate, undet such non-
cancellable operating leases with initial or remaining terms of one year or more, consist of
the following as of 30 June 2014:

Minimum Lease Payments Due

Within 1 year 1to 5 years After 5 years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

30 June 2014 1,182 1,552 15 2,749
30 June 2013 1,297 871 - 2,168

The Partnership has an obligation to restore certain of its leased premises back to their
original condition at the end of their respective leases. As of 30 June 2014 and 30 June
2013, the Partnership had a liability of $95 and $95, respectively accrued, which it
anticipates to be the amount required to restore the premises at the end of the leases.

The Partnership’s UK-Commercial subsidiary outsoutces the majority of its radio traffic
and entertainment news operations pursuant to contracts with unrelated third parties.
These expenses are a component of operating expense and are recognised over the term of
the applicable contracts, which is not materially different than when the services are
provided. The minimum future payments under these contracts are as follows:

Minimum Payments Due

Within 1 year 1to 5 years After 5 years Total

$'000 $°000 $'000 $°000

30 June 2014 3,861 1,885 - 5,746
30 June 2013 3,429 5,102 - 8,531

The Partnership generally enters into multiyear contracts with radio and television stations.
These contracts call for the provision of vatious levels of service (including, but not limited
to providing professional broadcasters, gathering of information, communications costs
and aviation services) and, in some cases, cash compensation ot teimbutrsement of
expenses. Station compensation and reimbursement is a component of operating expenses
on the accompanying consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and is recognised over the terms of the contracts, which is not matetially different
than when the services are performed. Contractual station commitments consist of the

following:
Minimum Payments Due
Within 1 year 1 to 5 years After 5 years Total
$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
30 June 2014 42,912 47,798 - 90,710

30 June 2013 43,527 57,078 - 100,605
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28 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities
Details of the reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities are listed in the
following table:

2014 2013
$°000 $°000
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the period (1,464) (19,606)
Adjustments for:
Allowance for doubtful accounts 327 (113)
Equity based compensation expenses 410 644
Amortisation of deferred borrowing costs 319 311
Fair value movement on derivatives (195) (251)
Depreciation and amortisation 23,228 22,998
Foreign currency (gain)/loss (3,234) 9,825
Interest expense from amortisation of original issue discount 593 569
Impairment of assets from discontinued operations - 2,298
Net changes in working capital:
Change in trade and other receivables (2,821) 232
Change in other assets 738 1,011
Change in deferred tax assets 1,569 (2,886)
Change in trade and other payables (41) 3,037
Change in deferred revenue 1,284 (126)
Change in current tax liabilities 1,356 (594)
Change in provisions 133 191
Change in deferred tax liabilities (6,902) (4,335)
Change in other liabilities 534 63
Net exchange gain (456) (117)
Net cash from operating activities 15,378 13,151

29 Related party transactions

The Partnership has entered into a professional services agreement with GTCR
Management X LP, an affiliate of the majority partnership ownets, to provide management
services. For the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 the Partnership incutred $544
and $487 of expense, which is included as a component of selling, general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, respectively.

As of 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013, the Partnership had a liability of $54 and $56 to
entities affiliated with the majority partnership ownets.

The line of credit is guaranteed by both GT'CR Fund X/A AIV LP and GTCR Fund X/C
AIV LP, both of which are pattners in the Partnership.

43



GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P.
For the year ended 30 June 2014

30 Transactions with Key Management Personnel (Chief Executive

Officer, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Operating Officer, Executive

Vice-President/General Counsel)
Key Management Personnel remuneration includes the following expenses:

2014 2013
$ $

Total short term employee benefits 2,077,308 1,295,899
Total post-employment benefits - -
Total long-term benefits - -
Total equity based compensation 219,865 196,673
Total remuneration 2,297,173 1,492,572
31 Parent Entity information
Information relating to GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P. (‘the Parent Entity’):

2014 2013

$°000 $’000
Statement of financial position
Current assets - -
Total assets 197,766 203,922
Current liabilities - -
Total liabilities - -
Net assets 197,766 203,922
Partnership interests 226,419 207,667
Accumulated losses (44,749) (25,997)
Reserves 16,096 22,252
Total equity 197,766 203,922
Statement of profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Profit for the year = =
Other comprehensive income (loss) (6.,497) 21,293
Total comprehensive income (loss) (6,497) 21,293

32 Events subsequent to the reporting period

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which

significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Partnership, the

results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Partnership in future financial

yeatrs.

33 Segment information

The Partnership’s management analyses the company’s petformance by geographic area

and has identified four reportable segments: Australia, Brazil, Canada and United

Kingdom.

The segments’ revenues are as follows:

2014 2013

$°000 $°000
Australia 78,347 73,364
United Kingdom 37,496 31,313
Canada 19,744 19,706
Brazil 2,462 621
138,049 125,004
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Management tracks performance primarily by Adjusted EBITDA which is defined as
EBITDA adjusted for any foreign exchange profit or loss and other unusual non-recutting
items.

2014 2013
$°000 $°000
EBITDA by Segments
Australia 21,448 16,840
United Kingdom 3,378 2,785
Canada 1,672 1,448
Brazil (1,598) (1,912)
Other (922) (2,296)
Adjusted EBITDA 23,878 16,865
Foreign Exchange gain (loss) 3,234 (9,825)
EBITDA 27,112 7,040
Depreciation and amortization (23,228) (22,998)
Financing costs net of interest income (5,359) (6,469)
Loss before taxes and discontinued
operations (1,475) (22,427)

Segment assets and liabilities are classified by their physical location.

2014 2013
$°000 $°000
Segment assets
Total Assets:
Australia 211,073 218,091
UK 33,415 31,771
Canada 24,457 28,739
Brazil 2,103 1,454
Total segment assets 271,048 280,055
Unallocated:
Deferred tax assets 3,961 5,540
Intercompany eliminations (3,396) (2,693)
Other (3,816) (3.289)
Total assets 267,797 279,613
Segment liabilities
Total liabilities
Australia 69,834 93,063
UK 23,738 16,179
Canada 19,090 27,786
Brazil 3,321 1,879
Total segment liabilities 115,983 138,907
Unallocated:
Deferred tax liabilities 26,261 33,163
Borrowings 64,026 70,062
Derivatives 1,487 1,682

Intercompany eliminations (96,099) (121,283)
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Others 6,353 3,742
Total liabilities 118,011 126,273
34 First time adoption of IFRS

These financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 are the first set of accounts the
Partnership have prepared in accordance with IFRS. For petiods up to and including the
year ended 30 June 2014, the Partnership prepated its financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP).
The Partnership has prepared financial statements which comply with IFRS applicable for
periods ending on or after 30 June 2014 together with comparative petiod data as at and
for the years ended 30 June 2013 as described in the accounting policies.

In preparing these financial statements, the Partnership’s opening statement of financial
position was prepared as at 1 July 2012, the Partnetships date of transition to IFRS. This
note explains the principal adjustments made by the Partnership in restating its US GAAP
statement of financial position as at 1 July 2012 and its previously published US GAAP
financial statements as at and for the year ended 30 June 2014.

First-time adoption exemptions applied

Upon transition, IFRS 1 permits certain exemptions from full retrospective application of
IFRS. The Group has applied the mandatory exceptions and certain optional exemptions,
as set out below.

Optional exemptions adopted by the Group:

Cumulative currency translation differences for all foreign operations are deemed to be
zero as at 1 July 2012
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assets

2 Reduce goodwill by unrecognized deferred taxes for indefinite lived intangible

47
Reconciliation of equity
Equity at the date of transition and at 30 June 2014 can be reconciled to the amounts
reported under US GAAP as follows:
1 July 2012 30 June 2014
$000 $000
Effect of Effect of
Note US GAAP transition to IFRS US GAAP transition to IFRS
IFRS IFRS
Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 11 12,818 - 12,818 28,519 - 28,519
Trade and other receivables 12 24,383 - 24,383 26,758 - 26,758
Other current assets 13 5,383 (2,644) 2,739 (1) 1,618 (638) 980 (
Assets held for sale 1,337 - 1,337 - - =
Current assets 43,921 (2,644) 41,277 56,895 (638) 56,257
Non-current
Property, plant and equipment 16 5,546 - 5,546 5,347 - 5,347
Intangible assets 15 146,616 - 146,616 108,274 - 108,274
Goodwill 14 97,434 (3,531) 93,903 (2) 97,307 (3,592) 93,715 (
Deferred tax assets 17 - 2,644 2,644 (1) 1,185 2,776 3,961 (
Other assets 13 1,595 (1,361) 234 (3) 977 (734) 243
Non-current assets 251,191 (2,248) 248,943 213,090 (1,550) 211,540
Total assets 295,112 (4,892) 290,220 269,985 (2,188) 267,797
Liabilities
Current
Trade and other payables 18 18,310 (331) 17,979 (4) 21,782 (669) 21,113 ¢(
Liabilities held for sale 117 - 117 - - -
Deferred revenue 20 374 - 374 1,532 - 1,632
Current tax liabilities 17 910 - 910 1,671 1 1,672
Financial liabilities 21 3,750 - 3,750 7,937 - 7,937
Provisions 19 = 331 331 (4) - 677 677
Current liabilities 23,461 - 23,461 32,922 9 32,931
Non-current
Trade and other payables 18 - 50 50 (8) - 54 54 (.
Financial liabilities 21 68,732 (1,361) 67,371 (3) 56,824 (735) 56,089 (
Deferred tax liabilities 17 41,118 (3,620) 37,498 (5) 27,269 (1,008) 26,261 (:
Derivatives 22 1,933 - 1,933 1,487 - 1,487
" Other liabilities 23 1,110 (1,073) 37 (6) 1,243 (609) 634 (
Provisions 19 - 577 577 (7) - 555 555 (
Non-current liabilities 112,893 (5,427) 107,466 86,823 (1,743) 85,080
Total liabilities 136,354 (5,427) 130,927 119,745 (1,734) 118,011
Net assets 158,758 535 159,293 150,240 (454) 149,786
Equity
Partners’ equity 24 158,875 33,294 192,169 (9) 138,781 87,638 226,419 (
Reserves (117) (751) (868) (10) 11,459 (764) 10,695 (1
Accumulated losses - (32,008) (32,008) (11) - (87.328) (87,328) (1.
Total equity 158,758 535 159,293 150,240 (454) 149,786
(1 Reclass current deferred taxes to deferred taxes
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3)

Reclass deferred loan costs to reflect a reduction in financial labilities

)

Reclass long service and leasehold restoration liabilities to provisions

®)

Eliminate deferred tax liabilities related to indefinite lived intangible assets

©)

Reclass long service and leaschold restoration liabilities to provisions

0,

Provisions recognized separately from other liabilities for IFRS

®)

Reclass related party payable

®)

Recognize accumulated losses and preferred dividends in accumulated losses and
reclass equity based compensation to resetves

(10)

Reclass equity based compensation to reserves, increase equity based
compensation reserve to reflect IFRS/US GAAP differences and offset foreign
currency translation reserve against beginning accumulated losses

(11)

Recognize accumulated losses and prefetred dividends in accumulated losses,
increase accumulated losses for equity based compensation differences between
IFRS and US GAAP and offset foreign currency translation resetve against
beginning accumulated losses

(12)

Recognize accumulated losses and preferred dividends in accumulated losses,
increase beginning accumulated losses for equity based compensation differences
between IFRS and US GAAP, offset foreign cutrrency translation resetve against
beginning accumulated losses and differences in net losses under US GAAP
versus IFRS
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The total effect on accumulated losses and equity is further analysed as follows:

Transition adjustments recorded in accumulated losses:

Reclass accumulated losses charged to partners’ equity

Reversal of foreign currency translation reserve to accumulated losses
Preferred dividends

Equity based compensation difference between IFRS and US GAAP

Impact of IFRS vs. US GAAP on consolidated statement of financial position
for period 1 July 2012 to 30 June 2014

Effect of transition to IFRS on retained earnings

Transition adjustments recorded in reserves:

Reversal of foreign currency translation reserve to accumulated losses

Reclass of equity based compensation from partners' equity to equity based
payments reserve

Equity based compensation difference between IFRS and US GAAP
Deferred tax asset derecognized through other comprehensive income
Translation adjustments

Effect of transition to IFRS on reserves

Transition adjustments recorded in partners’ equity

Reclass accumulated losses

Preferred dividends

Reclass of equity based compensation from partners’ equity to reserves
Others

Effect of transition to IFRS on partners’ equity

Total effect on equity

Notes

1 July 2012 30 June 2014
$'000 $°000

(22,934) (43,472)
1,674 1,674
(10,586) (44,836)
(162) (162)
- (532)
(32,008) (87,328)
(1.674) -
226 657
162 643
535 (403)
= (1,661)
(751) (764)
22,934 43,472
10,586 44,836
(226) (657)
- (13)
33,294 87,638
535 (454)

Under US GAAP, accumulated losses (including unpaid preferred dividends) reduce
partners’ equity rather than being recognized in accumulated losses. As discussed above,

the Company can make an optional election to reverse foreign cutrency translation tesetves

to accumulated profit or losses, which the company has so elected.
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Reconciliation of total comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the reporting period ended 30 June 2014 can be
reconciled to the amounts reported under US GAAP as follows:
Effect of
transition to
US GAAP IFRS IFRS
Notes $000 $'000 $000
Revenue 7 138,049 - 138,049
Other income 7 463 - 463
Operating expenses (85,916) - (85,916)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (28,142) (113) (28,255)
Depreciation and amortisation (23,228) - (23,228)
Finance costs (5,822) - (5,822)
Foreign currency transaction gain (loss) 3,234 3,234
Loss befote income tax (1,362) (113) (1,475)
Income tax benefit/(expense) 9 38 (27) 11
Loss for the year (1,324) (140) (1,464)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustment (2,154) (403) (2,557)
Unrealised gain on interest rate swaps 126 - 126
Total Other comprehensive loss for the year (2,028) (403) (2,431)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (3,352) (543) (3,895)

The difference in selling, general and administrative expenses is due to the accelerated
recognition of equity based compensation under IFRS when compated to US GAAP.

The difference in income taxes is due to tax rate changes in the UK on defetred taxes
related to indefinite lives intangibles which were not recognized under IFRS.

There are no significant differences between cash flows under IFRS and those under US
GAAP for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Presentation differences
Certain presentation differences between US GAAP and IFRS have no impact
on reported profit, cash flows or total equity.

Some assets and liabilities have been reclassified into another line item under
LFRS at the date of transition. The Company’s line of credit is a separate line
item on the US GAAP balance sheet but is a component of financial liabilities
(Cutrrent) under the IFRS statements.

Some line items are described differently (renamed) undet IFRS compated to US
GAAP, although the assets and liabilities included in these line items are
unaffected. These line items are as follows (with US GAAP descriptions in
brackets):
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® Trade and other receivables (Accounts receivable)

® Other current assets (Prepaids and other current assets)

® Property, plant and equipment (Property and equipment)

® Trade and other payables/current (Accounts payable and accrued expenses)

® Current tax liabilities (Income taxes payable)

® Financial liabilities/current (Cutrent portion of long term debt, Line of credit)
® Trade and other payables/non-current (Due to related patties)

® Financial liabilities/non-current (Long-tetm debt)

® Derivatives (Fair value of interest rate swaps)

®Reserves (Accumulated other comprehensive loss)
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Partners’ declaration

The Partners declare that:

1.

The consolidated financial Statements, comprising the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of financial
position, consolidated statement of cash flows, consolidated statement of changes
in equity, and accompanying notes:

(@) comply with Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board; and

(b) give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Partuership as at 30
June 2014 and of its performance for the year ended on that date.

The Partaership has included in the notes to the financial statements an explicit
and unreserved statement of compliance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

In the Partners’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the
Partnership will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made for and on behalf of the Partnership by:

Ftzmeayl

William Yde
President and Chief Executive Officer of GTCR Gridlock Partners Ltd. as general partner

Dated in 2015, this 8™ day of October
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Independent auditor’s report to the Board of Directors and
Partners of GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P.

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P. (the
Partnership), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, 30
June 2013 and 1 July 2012, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013, a summary of significant accounting policies, other
explanatory notes and the partners’ declaration for GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P. (the
consolidated entity). The consolidated entity comprises the Partnership and the entities it controlled at
years’ end or from time to time during the financial years.

Directors and Partners of the Partnership responsibility for the financial report

The Directors and Partners of the Partnership are responsible for the preparation of the financial
report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and for such
internal control as the Directors and Partners of the Partnership determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. In Note 1, the Directors and Partners of the Partnership also state, in accordance with
Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the consolidated
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors and
Partners of the Partnership, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Securities Ltd, ACN 003 311 617, ABN 54 003 311 617, Holder of
Australian Financial Services Licence No 244572

Darling Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street, GPO BOX 2650, SYDNEY NSW 1171

T: +61 2 8266 0000, F: +61 2 8266 9999, www.pwe.com.au
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Auditor’s opinion
In our opinion:

(a) thefinancial report of GTCR Gridlock Holdings (Cayman), L.P.:

(i)  gives a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June

2014, 30 June 2013 and 1 July 2012 and of its performance for the years ended 30 June
2014 and 30 June 2013; and

(ii) complies with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations).

(b) thefinancial report and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in Note 1.

hetalle @47
MW Chiang Sydney

Authorized Representative 8 October 2015
PricewaterhouseCoopers Securities Ltd



